
NOTICE

OF

MEETING

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

will meet on

WEDNESDAY, 8TH JUNE, 2016
at

3.30 pm

in the

CONFERENCE ROOM - YORK HOUSE, WINDSOR

TO: MEMBERS OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD

COUNCILLOR DAVID COPPINGER (DEPUTY CHAIRMAN OF CABINET AND LEAD 
MEMBER FOR ADULT SERVICES AND HEALTH) (CHAIRMAN), COUNCILLOR 
NATASHA AIREY (CABINET MEMBER FOR CHILDREN'S SERVICES) AND 
COUNCILLOR STUART CARROLL (DEPUTY LEAD MEMBER - PUBLIC HEALTH AND 
COMMUNICATIONS) ALISON ALEXANDER (MANAGING DIRECTOR AND STRATEGIC 
DIRECTOR OF ADULTS, CHILDREN AND HEALTH SERVICES), DR LISE LLEWELLYN 
(STRATEGIC DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH), DR ADRIAN HAYTER (WINDSOR ASCOT 
AND MAIDENHEAD CCG CLINICAL CHAIR AND LEAD FOR WINDSOR), DR WILLIAM 
TONG (BRACKNELL & ASCOT CCG CLINICAL CHAIR), AND MIKE COPELAND 
(CHAIRMAN OF HEALTHWATCH WAM)

Karen Shepherd 
Democratic Services Manager

Issued: 31 May 2016

Members of the Press and Public are welcome to attend Part I of this meeting.
The agenda is available on the Council’s web site at www.rbwm.gov.uk or contact the Panel 

Administrator Wendy Binmore 01628 796 251

Fire Alarm - In the event of the fire alarm sounding or other emergency, please leave the building quickly and calmly 
by the nearest exit, Do not stop to collect personal belongings and do not use the lifts.  Do not re-enter the building 

until told to do so by a member of staff.
Recording of Meetings – The Council allows the filming, recording and photography of public Council meetings. This 
may be undertaken by the Council itself, or any person attending the meeting. By entering the meeting room you are 
acknowledging that you may be audio or video recorded and that this recording will be available for public viewing on 
the RBWM website. If you have any questions regarding the council’s policy, please speak to the Democratic 
Services or Legal representative at the meeting.

Public Document Pack

http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/


AGENDA

PART I

ITEM SUBJECT PERSON TIMING PAGE 
NO

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive apologies for absence.

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive any Declarations of Interest.

5 - 6

3.  MINUTES

To confirm the Part I minutes of the previous meeting.

7 - 12

4.  THE JOINT HEALTH AND WELLBEING 
STRATEGY (JHWS) - WORKING ON OUR 
PRIORITY AREAS 2016-2020 (15 MINUTES)

To receive the above presentation from Catherine 
Mullins.

 Approval of Strategy

 Approval of Communications Plan

13 - 
38

5.  SUSTAINABILITY AND TRANSFORMATION 
PLAN (30 MINS)

To receive a joint presentation from John Lisle and 
Alison Alexander

 Update on progress

6.  BETTER CARE FUND - UPDATE ON BCF 
GOVERNANCE SUBMISSION TO NHS 
ENGLAND AND PROGRESS ON ACTIVITY (20 
MINUTES)

To receive the above presentation from Marianne 
Hiley.

 Update on BCF governance submission to NHS 
England

 Progress on activity

7.  TRANSFORMING CARE PARTNERSHIP (20 



MINUTES)

To receive an update from Nadia Barakat

8.  AOB - ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR THE 
BOARD

9.  FUTURE MEETING DATES

31 August 2016
30 November 2016
15 February 2017



ITEM SUBJECT PERSON TIMING PAGE 
NO



MEMBERS’ GUIDANCE NOTE 
 

DECLARING INTERESTS IN MEETINGS 
 
 

DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS (DPIs) 
 
 
DPIs include: 
 

 Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain. 

 Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit made in respect of any 
expenses occurred in carrying out member duties or election expenses. 

 Any contract under which goods and services are to be provided/works to be executed 
which has not been fully discharged. 

 Any beneficial interest in land within the area of the relevant authority. 

 Any license to occupy land in the area of the relevant authority for a month or longer. 

 Any tenancy where the landlord is the relevant authority, and the tenant is a body in 
which the relevant person has a beneficial interest. 

 Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where  
a) that body has a piece of business or land in the area of the relevant authority, 
and  
b) either (i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body or (ii) the total nominal 
value of the shares of any one class belonging to the relevant person exceeds one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class. 

 
PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS 
This is an interest which a reasonable fair minded and informed member of the public would 
reasonably believe is so significant that it harms or impairs your ability to judge the public 
interest. That is, your decision making is influenced by your interest that you are not able to 
impartially consider only relevant issues.   
 
DECLARING INTERESTS 
If you have not disclosed your interest in the register, you must make the declaration of 
interest at the beginning of the meeting, or as soon as you are aware that you have a DPI or  
Prejudicial Interest.  If you have already disclosed the interest in your Register of Interests 
you are still required to disclose this in the meeting if it relates to the matter being discussed.  
A member with a DPI or Prejudicial Interest may make representations at the start of the 
item but  must not take part in discussion or vote at a meeting. The term ‘discussion’ 
has been taken to mean a discussion by the members of the committee or other body 
determining the issue.  You should notify Democratic Services before the meeting of your 
intention to speak. In order to avoid any accusations of taking part in the discussion or vote, 
you must move to the public area, having made your representations.  
 
If you have any queries then you should obtain advice from the Legal or Democratic Services 
Officer before participating in the meeting. 
 
If the interest declared has not been entered on to your Register of Interests, you must notify 
the Monitoring Officer in writing within the next 28 days following the meeting.  
 
 
 

5

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



Health and Wellbeing Board - 08.03.16

HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD
DESBOROUGH SUITE - TOWN HALL AT 3.30 PM

08 March 2016

PRESENT: Councillors David Coppinger (Chairman) and Stuart Carroll, Alison 
Alexander, Eve Baker, Dr Adrian Hayter, Marianne Hiley, Angela Morris, Alex Tiley and 
Dr William Tong,

Officers: Wendy Binmore, Alison Alexander, Angela Morris, Catherine  Mullins and 
Hilary Hall

PART I

29/15 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies received from Councillor Natasha Airey, Mike Copeland, Dr Lise Llewellyn and 
Rachel Pearce.

30/15 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Cllr Carroll – Declared a personal interest as he works for a pharmaceutical company, 
Biogen. Cllr Carroll declared his employment in the interests of full transparency and to 
highlight that should for any reason during any point of the meeting, or indeed during future 
meetings, the HWB discussed anything directly related to Biogen’s business he would abstain 
from the discussion and leave the room as required. Cllr Carrol confirmed he had no pecuniary 
interests or conflicts of interests for any of the agenda items under discussion.

31/15 MINUTES

RESOLVED: That the Part I minutes of the meeting held on 1 December 2015 be 
approved

32/15 MEMBERSHIP OF THE HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD (DECISION)

Catherine Mullins gave a brief introduction to the report. The main key points highlighted 
included:

 When the Health and Wellbeing Board was established, the statutory minimum 
membership of the Board was included in the Health and Social Care Act 2012.

 The Health and Wellbeing Board is a sub-committee of Council.
 The Act states that membership needs to include three Local authority Officers 

comprised of the Directors of Adults Services, Children’s Services and Public Health.
 The report was requesting members to agree to having the Deputy Director to be a 

Member as the roles of Director of Adults and Childrens Services have now been 
merged in RBWM so there were not enough officers on the Board.

 When membership of the Board changes beyond the statutory requirements, it needed 
the permission of the whole Board to agree those changes.

 The second recommendation in the report was around NHS England Better Care Fund 

7

Agenda Item 3



Health and Wellbeing Board - 08.03.16
Manager for the region being a Health and Wellbeing Board Member within a non-
decision making capacity.

 A communication from NHS England had been received requesting the Better Care 
Fund Officer be co-opted onto the Health and Wellbeing Board without voting rights.

RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY: That the Health and Wellbeing Board:

1. Enhance the skills and expertise of the Health and Wellbeing Board members 
through including the Deputy Director of Health and Adult Social Care as a 
permanent member to the HWB.

2. Include the Better Care Fund Manager for South Central NHS England as a co-
opted member of the HWB in line with the letter from NHS England which states 
that the person will not have a vote (decision making powers) but is there to offer 
strategic support and knowledge sharing on key issues, particularly Better Care 
Fund planning.

33/15 THE JOINT HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY (JHWS) - WORKING ON OUR 
PRIORITY AREAS 2016-2020

Members received a presentation by Hilary Hall, Head of Commissioning Adult, Children and 
Health, on the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy Refresh 2016 and what the priority areas 
being worked on were. The key points noted were:

 One draft of the strategy had already been circulated.
 A Task and Finish Group had been formed to help drive the strategy refresh forward.
 The strategy was to be more proactive than previously.
 The strategy would be more accessible to residents.
 The JHWS would be keeping the same overarching priority themes as they are still 

relevant and have good support from stakeholders and the Task and Finish Group
 Hilary Hall had received a lot of good feedback on Theme 2: Prevention and Early 

Intervention.
 Engagement with wider stakeholders was taking place.
 There would be ongoing communication with stakeholders and other partners 

throughout the life of the strategy.
 A further version of the strategy was to be circulated.

Alison Alexander, Managing Director & Strategic Director of Adults, Children and Health 
Services stated there needed to be more visibility with all strategies so the all aligned. 
Marianne Hiley confirmed that aligning all of the strategies were key to integration.

RESOLVED: That: Members noted the contents of the presentation.

34/15 A NEW VISION OF CARE SERVICES

Members viewed a short video and received a brief presentation on a New Vision of Care 
Services and noted the following main points:

 The New Vision of Care is a model developed jointly with all partners.
 It had wide and growing support from CCG leadership, professionals and from local 

people.
 A lot of consultation work had been carried out.
 The sharing patient information core programme was up and running.
 The presentation explained the New Vision of Care was a simplified version of the 

model creating better health and independence.
 The model encouraged people to record their choices of care as they went through life.
 The New Vision of Care would deliver better value and financial sustainability.

8



Health and Wellbeing Board - 08.03.16

Alison Alexander, Managing Director & Strategic Director of Adults, Children and Health 
Services stated with growth of work streams, she had requested clarity on getting the right 
people linked in to the New Vision of Care. Dr Adrian Hayter commented that he was always 
trying to do better, and it was always possible to do more. Councillor Coppinger stated a paper 
had not been to Council or Cabinet and until it did, the strategy would not go anywhere. 
Elected representatives had not taken part in the journey and he wanted that addressed. 
Alison Alexander confirmed she would have a paper added to the Forward Plan for April

Dr Adrian Hayter explained that there had been three workshops held and he’d made sure that 
those delivering and using services had been included. He added it was important to work and 
liaise with charities and other relevant groups and that collaboration was beneficial as all 
stakeholders wanted to see the same positive outcomes in health services. In conjunction with 
the workshops, there had been a survey running and he was hoping the New Vision of Care 
produced a new way of delivering care; he wanted to ensure improvements benefit patients 
and were a person centred approach.

Resolved: that members of the Health and Wellbeing Board noted the contents of the 
presentation.

35/15 TRANSFORMING CARE PARTNERSHIP

Dr William Tong confirmed a bid had been submitted by the CCG. Alison Alexander, Managing 
Director & Strategic Director of Adults, Children and Health Services suggested that all 
transformation papers be rolled into one paper for Cabinet.

36/15 SUSTAINABILITY AND TRANSFORMATION PLAN

Dr Adrian Hayter provided members with a brief presentation on system sustainability and 
transformation plan. The key points members noted included:

 Frimley Health had changed the way quality was being delivered to patients.
 There was an emerging plan to work with Frimley Park collaboratively to deliver health 

improvements.
 Successful joint working with the Royal Borough and Public Health.
 Frimley were thinking about delivering care differently. The hospital would not be 

sustainable if it continued to deliver quality services in the way it currently did. 
 He wanted to build on existing innovation and transformation, especially within the 

Better Care Funds – it was all about making it better.
 Work would be ongoing for the next five years.

Resolved: That: Members noted the contents of the presentation.

37/15 BETTER CARE FUND - PROGRESS ON ACTIVITY AND PLANNING FOR 2016/17 
AND INSIGHT VISIT FROM NHE ENGLAND (DECISION)

Marianne Hiley provided members with a presentation on the Better Care fund. The main key 
points included:

 NEL admissions, general and acute, all ages per 100,000 population target to be more 
robust for 2016/17. Marianne Hiley was very clear about where and how failings to 
meet the target were occurring.

 Permanent admissions of older people (65+) to residential and nursing care homes, 
per 100,000 population target – needed to look at how the data was measured. There 
was also a need to understand the referrals process.

 Progress on 2016/17 planning: Maximising our leverage – 

9



Health and Wellbeing Board - 08.03.16
o Need to review successes and where it went wrong with regards to reviewing all 

costs and projects for the next year.
o Agreed Terms of Reference for Intermediate Care Review and Commission 

Consultant Support – this was done in-house and provided by RBWM and other 
agencies.

 Timelines – 
o 2 March: Guidance made available on 23 February. Local areas to submit a first 

draft of the BCF Planning Return template only to national DCO teams – 
unlikely to be any more or any less than previous year.

o 21 March: First Submission of ‘light touch’ narrative plans for Better Care 
alongside a second submission of the BCF Planning Return template. Detailing 
the technical elements of the planning requirements, including funding 
contributions, a scheme level spending plan, national metric plans, and any 
local risk sharing agreement – where no change of direction, being told that 
Marianne Hiley is able to just acknowledge that.

o 25 April: Final submission, with full narrative, formally signed off by the Health 
and Wellbeing Board and financial agreement.

 The Sources of Finance were preliminary figures.
 Key Themes:

o Non-Elective Admissions – will still figure going forward.
o There were aligned projects and programmes being written into CCG forward 

plan.
o BCF nationally being asked for really detailed delayed transfers of care.

 The timeline highlights the specifics of the Insight Visit.

Resolved: That: Members noted the contents of the presentation.

38/15 PUBLIC HEALTH ACTIVITIES UPDATE - RBWM PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL 
REPORT

Dr Lise Llewellyn was not available to attend the meeting but, she had stated that she was 
happy to answer any questions directly regarding to her report and would use any feedback to 
the report. The focus of the report this year was on infants and was very detailed.

39/15 DRUG AND ALCOHOL REVIEW - UPDATE ON PROGRESS

Hilary Hall, Head of Commissioning, Adult, Children and Health gave a brief update on the 
Drug and Alcohol Review. The main points included:

 A Task and Finish Group had been set up and there was a tight timeline for options to 
be presented to Cabinet in May 2016.

 A consultation had been carried out in January 2016 with good responses which were 
being analysed.

 The National Drug Strategy was about to be published so there was a delay going to 
Cabinet till the strategy was released.

Members thanked Officers for the huge amount of work that had been done.

40/15 AOB - ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR THE HWB

None.

41/15 FUTURE MEETING DATES

10



Health and Wellbeing Board - 08.03.16

Future meeting dates were noted.

The meeting, which began at 3.30 pm, ended at 4.50 pm

CHAIRMAN……………………………….

DATE………………………………..........

11



This page is intentionally left blank



Royal Borough of 

Windsor and 

Maidenhead 

  

Joint Health and 

Wellbeing Strategy  

 

April 2016 -   

March 2020  

Windsor Ascot and Maidenhead 

Clinical Commissioning Group 

  

Bracknell and Ascot 

Clinical Commissioning Group 

  

 

13

A
genda Item

 4



Foreword 

It has been a time of great change since the creation of the first Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 

(JHWS) in the Royal Borough. There have been many developments across the health and social care 

sector, all of which have the ultimate aim of improving outcomes for people. We have met those 

challenges by working together and within the challenging constraints of our financial pressures. 

We are able to build on the success of the first JHWS, such as reducing falls and helping people to 

improve their health. The areas where the evidence and residents have identified that they would like 

us to focus are what we are prioritising again for this refresh. This ensures that residents are able to 

continually be the voice for how, through our joint actions, we will make a real difference to health and 

wellbeing for all. 

It is the aim of the Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) to ensure that the Royal Borough continues to 

be a great place to live, work, play and do business.  Empowering residents to improve their own 

health status and sense of wellbeing underpinned by responsive and effective services is a key factor 

in ensuring that this aim continues to be a sustainable reality.  

 

Signatures Here 

 

Cllr David Coppinger – Lead Member for Adults, Health and Sustainability, Chair of the HWB 

Dr Adrian Hayter – Clinical Chair for Windsor, Ascot and Maidenhead CCG, Vice Chair of the HWB 

Dr William Tong – Clinical Chair for Bracknell and Ascot CCG 

 

2 

14



Introduction  

The Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) is in place to ensure there is collaboration 

between Windsor, Ascot and Maidenhead CCG, Bracknell and Ascot CCG, the  

NHS, Council services and Healthwatch WAM representing the wider community.  

The Board brings together local leaders to ensure services are in place that deliver 

high quality care for all and empower residents to have healthy lives and increased 

sense of wellbeing. Empowering residents to make informed choices and having 

the correct support at the appropriate time and in the right place ensures that 

services can meet demand in a sustained way. 
 

This Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS) sets out how some of the key 

local issues will be addressed. All of the actions identified in this document will 

improve outcomes for residents. Shared planning through the HWB will achieve the 

best possible results for residents.   
 

The three themes and twelve priorities do not reflect every need in the area,  

but identify specific actions to be undertaken to deliver improvements. They  

support resident choices and are a tool for partners to place key health and 

wellbeing issues within their priorities and strategic plans.  

3 

15



Our Vision for 2020 

This vision was developed by the Health and 

Wellbeing Board (HWB) which brings together the 

partnership of Health and Social Care stakeholders.    
 

The Strategy is relevant to all residents and 

organisations in the Royal Borough. It highlights the 

health and wellbeing priorities for the Royal Borough 

to improve on for the benefit of residents. It outlines 

a plan for how to do this to promote health, 

wellbeing and quality of life to the high standard 

residents would expect. 
 

Crucially, it asks residents and organisations to get 

involved in delivering the strategy and explains how 

this can be achieved. We are aiming to be holistic 

and integrated to use the strengths of  

our local systems, including the voluntary sector  

and residents themselves to achieve the best 

possible outcomes for all.  

 

‘The Royal 

Borough will be a 

healthy place to 

work, live and play 

where residents 

are enabled to be 

independent’ 

4 

16



New for Health and 
Social Care Services 

The NHS 5 Year Forward View – a long term 

plan for the NHS that is aligned with the NHS 

Mandate, a governance document that is 

updated every year and details the 

overarching plans for the Department of 

Health and NHS. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

The Children and Families Act 2014 – made 

changes around adoption, family justice, 

children with special educational needs, anti-

natal care (after birth) and updated the rights 

of working parents and the rights of the child if 

parents separate 

 

The Better Care Fund – supports integration of health 

and social care through pooling budgets.  The aim is 

reduce demand for emergency, acute and residential 

care by enabling people to remain in or closer or home 

and reducing the number and length of hospital stays.  

 

The Care Act 2014 – sets out how people’s care and 

support needs should be met, confirmed the right to an 

assessment for anyone, including carers and self-

funders, in need of support and set out that eligibility for 

services will be the same across England.  

 

 

5 

These are the key different national 

policy changes that the refreshed 

Strategy has taken into consideration. 

17



New for Health and 
Social Care Services 

 

• A New Vision of Care – is a project covering 

East Berkshire which aims to put in place a new 

model of care for people with complex needs in 

order to help avoid unnecessary admissions to 

hospital and care homes.  It will include 

supporting people to change to healthier 

lifestyles, using technology to help identify and 

monitor changes in conditions and providing care 

for people where they live from a multi-skilled 

team with their GP and practice at its core. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

• Connected Care – is the development of new 

technology to enable key health and social care 

information to be shared, with the resident’s 

permission, to help them get the treatment they 

need at the right time, especially in urgent 

situations. 

 

 

 

 

• New models of Primary Care (GP) Services – 

Project to look at the way that Doctors Services 

are delivered across the local area, including 

out of hours and as “hub” sights across the 

borough to deliver a wider range of efficient GP 

lead services to residents 

 

 

 
 

 
6 

For more information on the changes you 

can visit www.england.nhs.uk or 

www.rbwm.gov.uk/ or 

www.windsorascotmaidenheadccg.nhs.uk/ 

As well as implementing the national changes, there are a number of local improvement programmes: 

18

http://www.england.nhs.uk/
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/
http://www.windsorascotmaidenheadccg.nhs.uk/


Where we want to be by the year 2020 

7 

The outcomes that have been identified 

here are what you have told us you would 

like to have in the future.  They form the 

basis of our plans to integrate services in 

priority themed areas as detailed in this 

document.  

As a carer I know 

the warning signs 

and am aware how I 

can get help 

I have one point 
of contact for my 
health and care 
needs and I don’t 
have to tell my 
story more than 

once 

I am actively 

engaged in the 

community and 

there are a range of 

activities I can 

participate in  
I took my ill child to the 

GP on Friday night 

instead of going to A&E 

I feel in control of my care and 

my carer and family have been 

involved in developing my 

shared care plan 

As an older person I have 
all of the information I 
need to live a fit and 

active life. 

I have all of the information I 

need to manage my long 

term condition and my quality 

of life is good 

My child with severe 

learning disabilities is 

in high quality 

residential care close to 

home 

My family, carer and 
professionals are 
linked up through 

technology  

19



The Framework – 3 Themes and 12 

Priorities Provide the Framework for 

Action  

Theme 1 - Supporting a 

Healthy Population  

• Priority 1 – Enable more 

children and adults to 

be at a healthy weight   

• Priority 2- Lower risky 

levels of alcohol intake. 

• Priority 3 -  Get more 

people  to be more 

active more often  

• Priority 4- Empower 

people to be educated 

to ‘Self Care’ 

 

Theme 2 - Prevention and 

Early Intervention  

• Priority  5 – Enable a 

reduction of levels of 

cardiovascular disease 

• Priority  6 -Support people 

to have early diagnosis of 

dementia   

• Priority 7 – Support  

adults and children with 

mental health needs  

• Priority 8 – Assist and 

empower people with long 

term conditions 

 

 

 Theme 3 - Enable Residents to 

Maximise their Capabilities and 

Life Chances   

• Priority 9 – Facilitate 

participation in education, 

training, work, social  and 

community activities  

• Priority 10 – Support carers  

of all ages 

• Priority 11 – Enable health 

and wellbeing through 

regeneration and sustainable 

planning, including housing 

• Priority 12- Health and social 

care services deliver 

independence outcomes  

 

 

8 

These themes and priorities have been developed with and for residents to 

enable the HWB to focus its resources to improve health and wellbeing for all. 

20



The Royal 

Borough – the 

People and the 

Place  

 

Health and Public Health: 

• Average life expectancy at birth 81 years for men and 85 for women, 

better than England average 

• Main cause of premature death is cardiovascular disease, strokes, 

heart disease and cancer, but still less than national average 

• As an area, the Royal Borough performs in the top 25% of all 

Councils for 32 national public health indicators, other than incidence 

of malignant melanomas, hip fractures, winter deaths, infant mortality 

and deaths / injuries on the roads. In these areas our performance is 

within England average  

• Falls in older people needing hospital treatment forecasted to 

increasing to 658 by the year 2020 
 

Children and Young People: 

• 19,000 pupils accessing education in 65 schools 

• 73% schools rated as good or outstanding by OFSTED 

• 13 Childrens Centres and 9 Youth Centres 

• Corporate parenting responsibilities for the Council to 110 children 

• More than 150 families with multiple needs 
 

Adult Social Care: 

• Support to 750 16-64 year olds and 2,000 aged 65 years and over 

• 39 residential and nursing homes in the area 

• Integrated teams for people with learning disabilities and  

mental health to cover health and social care needs 

• Intermediate care – close to 55% of people who receive 

rehabilitation services go back to complete independence 

 

About the Royal Borough: 

• Total population of 146,300 with 

expected growth to 155,800 by 

2020, of which 29,800 will be over 

65 years 

• Land size of 79 square miles 

• 64,000 + households   

• Employment rate at 79.4%  better  

than the national average of 73.5% 

• Two CCGs, three hospitals and 22 

GP Practices 

• Between April 2012 – March 2015 

there were 97,903 emergency 

admissions to hospital for residents 

of all ages (adults and children) 

• There are four ward areas 

considered to be the most deprived 

in the local area – Clewer North, 

Belmont, Furze Platt and Oldfield 

 

9 

21



Our Successes  

 

 
 

Previous priority The target/baseline Where we are now 

Support people to stop smoking Target of 800 866 successful quitters 

Number of healthchecks taken up by 

residents 

Target of 3,000  3,165 healthchecks 

completed 

Reduction in falls by older people Reduce by 10% (from 

156 per 100,000 of 

population) 

Falls reduction of over 

10.1% 

Improve the home environment for 

residential services specialising in 

dementia care 

Application submitted 

to central government 

£847,000 grant awarded 

and all 17 care home 

environments improved 

Adoption placements completed within 

timescales  

100% 100% 

Number of homelessness prevention 

activities made 

Target of 800 1,137 different 

interventions completed 

Increase number of people who say they 

are able to manage their condition 

Increase the number 

from 50.3% 

Increased to 59% 

The success of the previous 

Strategy is measured by the direct 

impact it has on residents’ health 

and wellbeing 

22



Case Studies    
Benefits of technology to promote independence:   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 Support for a couple where the husband has dementia and has a new behaviour 

of wandering, only discovered after a neighbour knocked on the  front window to 

say that they had seen the husband walking down the road on his own.  The front 

door was open and no one had heard him leave.  After nearly an hour outside he 

was found safe but very cold and tired, it was a real shock for his wife as he had 

not done this before. Now there are brackets fitted on the front door so an alarm 

goes off when it is opened, which goes through to a monitoring station. This has 

given her re-assurance that he cannot just leave the house, so she can go about 

her daily living such as have a bath/shower or even just go to the toilet, without 

worrying that he will leave the house and no one will know or help him. 

  

 

 Mrs F has a risk of falls due to unsteady gait after a hip replacement. 

A range of telecare services put in place to prevent residential care 

being required, both to reduce the risk of falls actually happening and 

related hospital admissions, but also to enable help to be summoned 

quickly if Mrs F did fall. The equipment has enabled Mrs F to live 

safely at home and supported Mrs F’s carer to have a less isolated life 

and more freedom to do activities to enhance wellbeing due to 

knowing that help can be contacted quickly if it is required and the 

carer is not physically there. 

The following 

are real-life 

examples 

from the local 

area 

23



Case Studies    
Benefits of Homeshare: 

Mr T is 77 years old and has a Homesharer called Q, 20, with whom he has 

shared his home since September 2014.  Whilst T is very fit, active and enjoys a 

busy life, he does feel lonely, particularly during the long winter months.  His family 

were also concerned about him living alone in a large house.   
 

As part of the Homeshare arrangement Q shares the cooking and they eat 

together most evenings and hold lively debates on current topics.  Q also helps out 

with some gardening and DIY tasks.  They both watch the evening news together 

most nights and T says 'It's good to have the house used more fully and to share 

meals together in the evenings'. Q is taking time out from his University course to 

gain valuable work experience and Homeshare has not only provided him with 

affordable living accommodation but has, in his own words, meant “I don’t come 

home and sit in a rented room on my own anymore”. 
 

Joint Mental Health Services Support Group: 

Mrs P came to the service feeling very low and with anxiety around people, 

impacting on inability get to a job and causing isolation. Support from the mental 

team has enabled Mrs P to apply for a job that does not involve large amounts of 

interaction with others and develop personal coping mechanisms when she starts 

to feel anxious. Mrs P believes that the support of the mental health services is a 

huge factor in her ability to maintain employment and promoting her own self belief  

 

24



Action Plan 

Priority 1 Adults and children at a healthy weight 

Why is this important? What will we do? 

Obesity is one of the main 

lifestyle factors that influence 

health status. From the local 

Health Profile (2015) adults 

with excess weight is 

measured at 60.2% with 

obesity levels at just less than 

6% compared to 9% 

nationally. For children 31.3% 

year 6 have excess weight 

(England average 33.5%) 

with 16.6% being obese 

(England 19.1%).  

1. Encourage use of the leisure centres through a range of 

offers / incentives that appeal to all ages and throughout 

the year. 

2. Encourage residents to get more physically active through 

promoting the use of outdoor spaces  

3. Promote healthy eating through a public health campaign, 

including targeting at school children and through 

children’s centres. 

4. Have a specific awareness raising campaign of health, 

nutrition and portion sizes so that residents have the 

knowledge of how to make healthier choices easier 

 

 

 

How will we measure success? 

5% or less of children in reception year overweight/obese 

28% or less of children in year 6 overweight/obese 

55% or less of adults with excess weight  

25



Action Plan 

Priority 2 Lower risky levels of alcohol intake 

Why is this important? What will we do? 

Harmful levels of drinking is 

associated with a wide range of 

conditions, including brain damage, 

poisoning, liver disease, breast 

cancer and poor mental health. 

Alcohol also has a role in accidents, 

violence, criminal behaviour and 

other social behaviour problems. 

Currently the number of residents at 

just over 46% who complete 

treatment (rather that drop out) is 

above the England average of 

39.17%. 

 

1. Pro-active promotion campaign to increase awareness of 

alcohol harm, especially targeting at risk groups, including 

older people as a part of the tackling loneliness agenda 

and younger people, to reduce levels of risky behaviour. 

2. Recommission alcohol treatment services under the new 

specification guidance so that the number of people who 

complete the treatments (rather than drop-out) increases. 

3. Work with stakeholders to manage the impacts of anti-

social behaviours, including those relating to the night-

time economy and needing unplanned medical attention 

How will we measure success? 

Maintain and aim to increase the number of people who complete alcohol treatment to above 46% 

Deliver targeted campaigns that encourage harm-free drinking levels 

Reduce anti-social behaviour and alcohol related medical treatment through working with partners 
 

26



Action Plan 

Priority 3 Get more people to be more active more often 

Why is this important? What will we do? 

People who are active have a 

lower risk of cardiovascular 

disease, stroke and heart disease 

as well as reported improvements 

in mental health and sense of 

wellbeing. In England 6% of all 

deaths have lack of physical 

activity as a direct factor and it is 

considered to be leading lifestyle 

factor for cardiovascular disease, 

heart disease and strokes. 

Nationally 27.7% of people say 

they are inactive (less than 30 

minutes of activity in a week) 

1. Refresh and refocus the Prevention Strategy and 

action plan so that the broad lifestyle influences on 

risk of reduced health status are addressed, including 

encouraging residents to think about weight, activity 

and diet. 

2. Facilitate a range of opportunities for people that 

encourage activity and participation, particularly 

utilising outdoor space and through community hubs, 

including the national Fit4Life and One You 

campaigns 

3. Scope and develop a range of GP referral schemes to 

enable those who would benefit from a medically 

supported programme of activity to access 

appropriate services 

How will we measure success? 

The number of people who are physically inactive reduces from 21% of the local population  

Look at the use of referral schemes and increase how they are utilised and track outcomes of 

those who use them. 

27



Action Plan 
Priority 4 Empower people to be educated to self care 

Why is this important? What will we do? 

Empowerment and self 

efficacy are key factors to 

support people in making 

healthy choices and 

increasing their own sense of 

wellbeing. Key information 

giving based on local needs 

and to targeted groups, 

particularly those with a long 

term condition (LTC) can 

influence the success of 

improving outcomes. 

1. Refresh the Prevention Strategy and associated action plan to develop 

a range of self care activities which cover areas where the evidence 

from the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment, and the national Outcome 

Framework measures show other areas where residents could benefit 

with a focus on having the information to self care, including; 

• Long term conditions management  

• Mental health promotion 

• Falls prevention 

• Seasonal impacts on health and wellbeing 

• Smoking cessation for targeted groups 

• Awareness of how to reduce risk of malignant melanoma  

 

2. Develop a self-care health improvement programme that identifies 

actions that can be taken across the life-course 

How will we measure success? 

Increase the number of people who have a long term condition who say they are confident to self manage 

from 59% 

6 specific mental health promotion activities 

Reduction in number of falls related A&E admissions to make a total reduction of 11% 

Specific campaigns to promote weather related self care actions 

Continued reduction in smoking cessation from 12.1% as the amount of smoking adults 

Incidence of skin cancer diagnosis are reduced from 18.1 per 100,000 of population (England average 18.4) 

28



Action Plan 

Priority 5 Reduce levels of cardio-vascular disease  

Why is this important? What will we do? 

Cardiovascular disease 

(CVD) is the second leading 

cause of death in England 

(27%) and is a term used to 

cover conditions of the heart 

and circulation system. 

Locally we perform worse 

than the England average for 

hospital admissions for CVD 

related concerns. 

 

1. Promote the best way to reduce risks specifically 

associated with lifestyle factors, including a healthy heart 

programme 

2. Work with the NHS to refresh the CVD care pathway 

covering health and social care. 

3. Encourage people at risk to have a Healthcheck which 

identifies key risk factors. 

4. Support people who have a diagnosis of CVD to manage 

their condition and to develop a condition plan, including 

what could support them to reduce risk of emergency 

admission  

How will we measure success? 

Reduced number of emergency admissions into hospital due to CVD as the primary reason to 

be more in line with the national average. 

More people who are eligible being offered a Healthcheck (14% locally compared to 19.7% of 

England average). 

29



Action Plan 

Priority 6 Support people to have an early diagnosis of dementia 

Why is this important? What will we do? 

In England 1 in 3 people 

aged 65 and over will have a 

diagnosis of dementia, and 

with the demographic growth 

of people living longer.  It is 

forecasted that  by 2020 

locally  2,327 people aged 

over 65 will have a diagnosis 

and 41 younger people 

having a formal diagnosis. 

1. Refresh of the joint dementia strategy and action plan, which 

includes the specific details actions to support residents and 

their families with dementia, which is lead by the Older Persons 

Mental Health Subgroup. 

2. Extend the dementia advisor support services to enhance the 

support available to residents, especially those who are newly 

diagnosed and to share the learning of the services to other 

professionals who are able to assist those with dementia and 

their families 

3. Increase the number of people who are on the dementia 

register, and therefore receiving specialist services in line with 

the forecasted growth of population 

How will we measure success? 

Monitoring and reporting on the dementia strategy an action plan activities. 

Increase the number of people who receive a service from the Dementia Advisor from the current 

number of 158 (as at March 16) 

Increase the number of people on the dementia register from 1,151 people, as at March 2016, in 

line with forecasted predictions in population changes  

30



Action Plan 
Priority 7 Support and empower adults and children with mental 

health needs 

Why is this important? What will we do? 

3% of the population report having a long 

term mental health problem with 15,542 

people aged 16-64 forecasted by 2020 to 

have either a common mental health disorder 

(14,465) personality disorder (404) antisocial 

disorder (314) psychotic disorder (359). 

School-age boys  are more likely (11.4%) to 

experiencing mental health problems than 

girls (7.8%). With 11 to 16 years olds are 

also more likely (11.5%) than 5 to 10 year 

olds (7.7%) to experience mental health 

problems. In 2013/14, 33 children aged 0-17 

were admitted into hospital for a mental 

health condition. Admissions locally 

increased in 2013/14 to be higher than the 

national rate for the first time. 

1. Review and enhance local mental health services in 

line with the national Mental Health Crisis Care 

Concordat 

2. Have a range of mental health promotion activities and 

campaigns that both support people who have a 

condition, but also reduce the stigma of mental health 

conditions to the wider population, this will include hard 

to reach groups.  

3. Proactive assessment of the services available and the 

level of mental health needs for children and young 

people and look at how other services can support and 

encourage mental wellbeing (e.g. Childrens Centres) 

4. Work with other service providers (e.g. housing and 

leisure services) to enable them to identify the way they 

can support residents with common mental health 

concerns improve their wellbeing 

How will we measure success? 

Work across health and social care to deliver integrated crisis care mental health services  

Reduce the number of children and young people admitted into residential mental health services from 33 

per year. 

Deliver a range of mental health promotion activities based on local needs, aim to reach 200 in depth 

interactions and disseminate information to over 600 individuals 

31



Action Plan 

Priority 8 Support and empower people with a long term condition 

Why is this important? What will we do? 

Long term condition  (LTC) is an 

umbrella statement for a variety of 

health conditions that do not have a 

cure, but can usually be managed 

with support. 59% of the population 

within WAM CCG boundaries with a 

LTC stated that they were 

supported enough to manage their 

condition, which is slightly lower 

than England average. This can be 

supported through telecare and  

telehealth support which enables 

independent living and self efficacy 

1. Develop a self care programme for people who have a 

condition to be empowered to manage it. 

2. Develop a technology enabled care strategy and action 

plan to support people who have a long term condition 

live at home safely and be able to monitor and respond to 

their own health status changes.  This will be overseen 

through a Telecare / Telehealth specialist group which will 

develop refine and test the latest technologies. 

3. Ensure that residents with a long term condition receive 

holistic reviews of their condition, medication, pain 

management and life circumstances through integrated 

care planning. 

How will we measure success? 

Increase in the number of people who say they are supported to manage their own condition from 

59% to 62% 

Working and aligning with the technology enabled care action plan and reducing any barriers that 

have been identified  

Develop a LTC self care programme with people who have a LTC so that the resident voice is 

involved with care planning. 

32



Action Plan 
Priority 9 Facilitate participation in education, training, work 

social and community activities  

Why is this important? What will we do? 

These are the areas that impact on health 

and wellbeing status, as wider 

determinations of health.  Locally 45.9% of 

people with a learning disability have 

employment, which is better than England 

average of 33.1%. 

For people with a mental health condition 

26.9% of residents have employment, 

which is slightly worse than the England 

average of 33.9% 

Participation in education, training or 

employment for children leaving care is 

hugely impacting on life chances and 

therefore increasing this number from 

70.6%  locally is also a priority. 

1. Work with specialist employment agencies to enable 

people who need extra support to gain employment 

have access to work  

2. Work with local small and mediums sized enterprises 

to facilitate work experience opportunities 

3. Work with local businesses and groups to enable 

employers to promote the wellbeing of staff, including 

reducing stress and physical movement, especially for 

those who are desk based / static in their job roles. 

4. Using technology to support carers monitor the 

wellbeing of the person they are caring for from a 

distance or when away from home. 

How will we measure success? 

Achieving higher employment rates for vulnerable groups, learning disabilities of 48% and mental 

health to 30% through developing specialist employment support services. 

Feedback and levels of participation from local businesses and stakeholders in activities / campaigns 

that support improved staff health and wellbeing status 

33



Action Plan 
Priority 10 Support for carers of all ages 

Why is this important? What will we do? 

Approximately 13,125 residents have identified 

themselves as Carers in the 2011 Census, and 

this is likely to be an underestimate of the true 

number. This has increased by 15.1% since 

2001, much faster than the rise in the overall 

population (8.2%). Carers make up 9.2% of the 

total local population.  

There were 750 carers under 25 in the Royal 

Borough identified by the 2011 Census (1.8% of 

the under 25 population), including 225 aged 

under 16 years. 20% carers report being in ‘not 

good’ health, compared to 12.5% of non-carers. 

Almost a third of people providing 20 + hours of 

unpaid care per week report being in ‘not good’ 

health; this increases to just over half of carers 

aged 65 and over (40.3% for non-carers aged 

65 years or over).  

1. Provide good quality information and advice 

2. Provide support for carers to enable them to find 

their way to the professional who can best help 

them 

3. Provide opportunities for carers to take a break 

from caring 

4. Increase the number of carers identified  

5. Improve the overall health and wellbeing for 

carers 

6. Support carers in education, employment and 

life chances 

7. Ensure that carers from diverse communities are 

supported 

 

 

(Carers’ Strategy) 

How will we measure success? 

Improved rates of access to employment for carers 

More carers reporting that they are in good health 

Carers reporting that they have as much social contact as they would like to have 

Monitoring the implementation of the Action Plan 

34



Action Plan 
Priority 11 Enable health and wellbeing through regeneration 

and sustainable planning, including housing 

Why is this important? What will we do? 

Each local authority area is required to 

have a Local Plan to manage 

development for the area. Included within 

that is the enabling of health and 

wellbeing activity and behaviours. This 

can include for example, areas being 

dementia friendly, meeting housing 

needs of the population, reducing the risk 

of injuries on roads and enabling access 

to green spaces. Only 1.16% of residents 

report they utilise outside parks and 

green spaces for purposes of exercise or 

wellbeing, low compared to England 

average of 17.1%. Number of people 

killed / seriously injured  on roads is 

higher than national average of 39.3 

1. Implement policy and measures to improve health 

with developments and housing needs, including 

spatial planning, licensing and increasing 

opportunities for communities to come together. 

2. Develop an affordable housing model for the 

regeneration programme for the borough 

3. Work with local communities to enable local 

vulnerable people to be able to live safely in areas 

that meet their needs 

4. Utilise the green spaces that are available through 

facilitating local use of the available land for 

wellbeing activities 

5. Work with highways and other partners to examine 

the road safety needs and records so that actions 

can be taken. 

 

How will we measure success? 

Develop an affordable housing action plan that responds to residents needs. 

Increased number of people who use services saying they feel safe from 67.45% 

Increased number of residents participating in green space activities 

Reduced number of road deaths or serious injuries from 39.6 per 100,000 of the population 

35



Action Plan 
Priority 12 Health and social care services deliver independence 

outcomes 

Why is this important? What will we do? 

Maximising independence outcomes will 

have a significant impact on reducing 

dependency on services, enhancing 

personal wellbeing and enabling people 

to have a usual life experience. The 

number of people who reach full 

independence after going through 

rehabilitation / intermediate care services 

increases (from 889 individuals 2013/14). 

Prevention and wellbeing services that 

support independent living, including 

reduced delayed transfers of care out of 

hospital are also developed through the 

Better Care Fund. 

1. Develop and refine the outcome based commissioning 

(Care and Support at Home) project, which promotes 

independence for residents  

2. Shape the intermediate care services across the borough 

to support people to regain and maximise the potential for 

independence and reduce dependency on services 

3. Reduce the number of delayed discharges from hospital 

(where someone is medically fit to leave) by having a 

range of support services available that enable people to 

recover from illness at home with the right support 

4. Identify those residents who may just be starting to 

struggle at home and offer a personalised support package 

How will we measure success? 

Reports on individual outcomes achieved through the Care and Support at Home project and the number of 

people who achieve their outcomes increases year on year 

Increased in the number of people  who return to full independence through intermediate care services, 

both community and residential intermediate care services 

Use of lower level support services that support people who are just starting to struggle at home and 

assessment of effectiveness of that service. 

36



Together we can achieve 

 

 

 

 

 

Our Commitment: To… 
 …put residents / patients outcomes at the centre of our shared planning 

 …work to outcomes that support health and wellbeing for all 

 …ensure that safeguarding and best practice is promoted in services 

 …work together in an efficient and sustainable way to have quality and effective services  

 …have services that characterised by dignity, equality, respect and accessibility for all 

 …engage and listen to residents and patients for improvements in services 

Your Contribution: To... 
 ….think about the different things you can do to improve your own health and wellbeing status 

 ….register with a Doctors Surgery / GP so that you can get the right help at an early stage 

 ….access and use the information and advice that is available where there is a health or 
wellbeing outcome that you may need support to achieve 

 ….respect the staff and services that are available and to utilise them appropriately, so  
that resources are able to support and help as many people as possible 

 ….complete prescribed treatments and keep appointments, or cancel them with as much 
notice as possible 

 

 

 

 

 

37



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Minutes
	4 The Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS) - Working on our priority areas 2016-2020 (15 minutes)

